
DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 1 of 23 
 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 

TUESDAY, JUNE 18, 2024 3 
3:30 P.M. 4 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, June 18, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. at the 5 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 6 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 7 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:  8 
2024.06.18 Town Council Work Session - YouTube 9 
 10 
[ATTENDANCE] 11 
 12 
Elected Body  13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  14 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray  15 
Councilmember Brett Gantt 16 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 17 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  18 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth 19 
Absent: None   20 

 21 
Town Staff  22 
Town Manager Randy Vosburg  23 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis  24 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe  27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  28 
Communications Director Stacie Galloway  29 

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below. 30 

[COMMENCMENT] 31 
 32 

Mayor Gilbert welcomed everyone and led those in attendance in the pledge of 33 
allegiance.  34 

 35 

[COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS – ZENCITY] 36 
 37 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uuhq9v7T4Vc


DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 2 of 23 
 

 Mayor Gilbert invited Director Galloway Galloway, Communications Director, to 1 
begin the presentation of the Community Survey Results – Zencity. 2 
 Director Galloway introduced Ms. Hoffman Hoffman, Customer Service Manager 3 
 with Zencity. 4 

Ms. Hoffman introduced Katelyn Webber, Survey Research Analyst with Zencity. 5 
Ms. Webber give the following presentation regarding Community Survey Results – 6 

Zencity. 7 
 8 
[SLIDE-1] 9 

 10 
[SLIDE-2] 11 

 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 3 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-4] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was any information on the results of 5 
modality. He said he was curious how many were from Facebook. 6 
 Ms. Webber said that she thought they would have that breakdown but would have 7 
to go into the platform to look at that data. She said she could send him the breakdown of 8 
what platforms the data came from Councilmember Gantt if he was interested. 9 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that he would want that. 10 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked how it is decided what responses are uses.  11 
 Ms. Webber said that all responses are used with the waiting a bit to make sure that 12 
they are getting a representative sample. 13 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if that was a common methodology that is used for 14 
all surveys. 15 
 Ms. Webber said that is correct.  16 
 Councilmember Gantt said that here were changes from year to year. He asked if the 17 
baseline year had a similar number of respondents. 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 4 of 23 
 

 Director Galloway said that the first pilot sample was last Fall but did not hit the 1 
representative numbers. She said that she would like to count this as their baseline data.  2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the changes next time may be more robust. 3 
 Director Galloway said, yes. 4 
 5 
[SLIDE-5] 6 

 7 
[SLIDE-6] 8 

 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 5 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-7] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-8] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-9] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 6 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-11] 3 

 4 
Councilmember Mahaffey asked if it was typical trends in other communities, for 5 

example the education and income levels being higher. 6 
 Ms. Webber said that it really wasn’t typical. She said that there wasn’t really a typical 7 
demographic satisfaction between communities. She said that there are different variables 8 
that can change any certain demographic group’s satisfaction. 9 
 Ms. Hoffman said that there would be benchmarks later in the report that will validate 10 
that the scores are good. 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 7 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-12] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-13] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked why some of these categories are involved and is 5 
there a significance. 6 
 Ms. Webber said there is a change in both the positive score as well as the negative 7 
score. She said that if there is a change of more than 5% they would be bolded.  8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 8 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-14] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-15] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-16] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 9 of 23 
 

 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if the “other” category was that a fill-in the 1 
blank. 2 
 Ms. Webber said that if people chose “other” then it opens an open text response. 3 
She said that those could be sent over if Council would like.  4 
[SLIDE-17] 5 

 6 
 Councilmember Gantt said that people usually ask for speedbumps. 7 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he expected more on the bike lanes. 8 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about roundabouts.  9 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked about other responses.  10 
 Ms. Webber said that “Other” responses were 18%. She said that she would work on 11 
the open text sent to Council. 12 
 Councilmember Gantt asked Council collectively what they thought about what 13 
citizens really meant by people are going to fast in neighborhood roads.  14 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that he sees it could be people are driving too fast 15 
generally and also it could be that there are too many people. He said he would like to know 16 
what is in the 18%. 17 
 Councilmember Gantt said that it is 18% of the 24% so it’s not that representative of 18 
the people.  19 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that possibly on the next survey to ask more 20 
specific questions. 21 
 Director Galloway said that there is a vision zero survey. She said that this is high 22 
level to get some data over time and see the trends and then is where we would focus more 23 
intentional efforts.  24 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that to question if this was within the ETJ or within the 25 
physical boundaries. 26 
 Director Galloway said she was not sure if it asked if the citizen was within corporate 27 
limit.  28 
 Ms. Webber said that at the beginning of the survey it is asked if the respondent lives 29 
in Apex and if they do not, they are diverted out of the survey.  30 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 10 of 23 
 

 Ms. Hoffman asked if it was zip code based on the demographics. 1 
 Ms. Webber said that the survey does ask for a zip code.  2 
 Ms. Hoffman said that the Town Council may want to look at the lowest score and 3 
that they may want to change the questions some in the next survey. 4 
[SLIDE-18] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE-19] 7 

 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 11 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-20] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-21] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he could see that the younger age group being 5 
more sensitive to the littering and the overall Environmental Education. 6 
 Ms. Webber said that the survey does indicate that that age group is a bit more 7 
critical. She said that they would send a breakdown of how this survey and the national and 8 
some communities compare. 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 12 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-22] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-23] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Mahaffey aid that this was a question that people are going to be 5 
negative about. He said everyone likes to pay less taxes. He said that he was not surprised 6 
about these results.  7 

Deputy Town Manager Purvis wasn’t sure what high would be on this, but it would 8 
be good to see the comparison. He asked what a normal trend looks like. He said that when 9 
this survey was taken that there was a lot of tax rates were unknown. 10 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that over all he felt like the numbers were positive. 11 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that he wasn’t sure if they were asking the right 12 
questions.  13 

Councilmember Mahaffey said that this number is not the value that they want to get 14 
out of the survey.  15 

Director Galloway asked if this was a benchmark question. 16 
Ms. Webber said she would check. 17 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 13 of 23 
 

Director Galloway said that benchmark questions have to be phrased exactly the 1 
same to measure but some that were added because we had measured these before.  2 

Deputy Town Manager Purvis said that is important what is communicated in the 3 
budget. 4 

Ms. Hoffman said she was looking at the slide and that she did not think it was a 5 
benchmark question. She said that the Council can re-word the question as it is or use one of 6 
the custom questions that is available.   7 

Ms. Webber said that it may be worth rephrasing the question.  8 
Director Galloway said it had been asked because it had been asked in the previous 9 

surveys.  10 
Councilmember Gantt said that part of the response was because it was done right 11 

after an election. He said that the timing matters.  12 
Councilmember Mahaffey said he wanted to figure out how to make the data to be 13 

of value.  14 
Ms. Webber said that there were ways to rephrase the question. 15 
Councilmember Zegerman said he liked the frequency of the survey. 16 
 17 

[SLIDE-24] 18 

 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 14 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-25] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-26] 3 

 4 
Councilmember Zegerman asked what the methodology with the cohort 5 

comparisons were. He said that the comparisons were with communities far away and not 6 
local like Holly Springs, Fuquay or Zebulon or Wake Forest. 7 

Ms. Webber said that the comparisons were with communities with similarities.  8 
Councilmember Zegerman asked if they could get a complete list of the cohorts.  9 
Ms. Webber said yes.  10 
Director Galloway said that the names in the comparison were just a few of the 11 

cohorts. She asked Ms. Webber to provide the list of cohorts if that list is available. 12 
Ms. Webber said she would talk with her team to see what is available.  13 
Councilmember Zegerman asked if there was a smaller cohort that Apex can be 14 

compared to.  15 
Ms. Webber said that she would check with her team to get a list of the full cohorts 16 

and see if this list can be updated.   17 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 15 of 23 
 

Councilmember Gantt said that switching out Jacksonville and Greenville for the 1 
suburbs of major cities in the Southeast. He asked if the Departments had seen this. 2 

Director Galloway said that they were just given it this morning. 3 
 4 

[SLIDE-27] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE-28] 7 

 8 
 Councilmember Gantt said that Parks and Wreck Facilities were much higher than 9 
Cultural Arts and that he was pretty sure that they spend 80% on Parks and Rec and 20% if 10 
not less on Cultural Arts and that maybe this is showing this in this survey. 11 
 Ms. Webber said that it was important to note that it is still higher in the cohort and 12 
the national benchmarks. 13 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what people are reacting to. 14 
 Councilmember Gantt said that it could be that Cary has the nice theatre downtown. 15 
He said they may just be looking around and comparing.  16 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that this would be worth looking at. 17 
 Ms. Webber said all of these would be good to add to the survey in the next cycle.  18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 16 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-29] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-30] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-31] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 17 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-32] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-33] 3 

 4 
 5 
 Councilmember Gantt said he would like to see the contrast with the source of the 6 
response. 7 
 Ms. Webber said that she would look to see if there is any correlation. 8 
 Councilmember Gantt said that the information aligns the efforts with some of the 9 
information and the age breakdown.  10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 18 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-34] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-35] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that how the question was stated could have been 5 
answered as how well Council listens or how quickly the service is followed up. 6 
 Councilmember Gantt said it could be the same thing. He said he thinks this question 7 
is about growth and more about policy. 8 
 Ms. Webber said that if they wanted to ask about specific about resident requests, it 9 
could be done on the next survey. 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 19 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-36] 1 
 2 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if these were responses written in or were these 3 
pre-worded questions. 4 
 Ms. Webber said this was an open text response. She said that it was a very 5 
encouraging response. She said that they would get the full list of responses.  6 
 7 
[SLIDE-37] 8 

 9 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he wanted to be careful that they weren’t 10 
overloading the survey with lots of questions. He asked in what way could some of the 11 
questions be supplemented. 12 
 Director Galloway said that Zencity has software to do a less formal survey. She 13 
agreed that they should keep the survey shorter. She said that they would provide these 14 
surveys every 6 months.  15 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that his concern that is if they are only putting 16 
something up on Facebook then they are only getting 40% responses.  17 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 20 of 23 
 

 Councilmember Gantt said this survey is twice a year. He asked if there was much 1 
value to the one off.  2 
 Councilmember Zegerman said it was a pulse check. He suggested keeping the 3 
online official survey and shortening two points and to use supplemental avenues to do a 4 
pulse check. He said that he wanted to get a snap of the information and not wait six months 5 
every time.  6 
 Mayor Gilbert said that he would like to get more ethnicity engagement.  7 
 Ms. Webber said that they work to get as many as possible. She said if there were 8 
demographic groups they would keep that in mind for future campaigns. 9 
 Director Galloway said they are trying to diversify some strategies for different 10 
demographics. 11 
 Ms. Hoffman said that Zencity does have an online community engagement tool that 12 
allows to promote educational content or feedback. She gave several options for diverse 13 
outreach in the community.  14 
 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said that they were building a Community 15 
Engagement team. 16 
 Councilmember Gantt asked what the staff plan for improvement is. 17 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that they are not surprised in the survey results. He said 18 
that Council is budgeting money where some of these gaps are. He said that there needs to 19 
be strategies on being more transparent.  20 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said moving the survey slightly during Festival Season 21 
so that there can be more in person engagement to have people complete the survey 22 
possibly on iPad or devices. 23 
 Director Galloway said that surveys completed on an iPad would not be counted in 24 
the survey. 25 
 Ms. Webber said that this was because those surveys tend to be biased and there is 26 
no way to weight the questions in the way that the online survey panels are done.  27 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that they have other ways to do follow ups.  28 
 Director Galloway said that she wanted to point out that things we can do to improve 29 
transparency and communicate more were scored fairly low, but with honesty and politics 30 
being low on the list was very encouraging because that is harder to build back up than it is 31 
to increase the frequency of our communications.    32 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that even adjusting Council meeting times, we 33 
will not satisfy everyone.  34 
 Ms. Hoffman thanked the Council for all the feedback received. She said she was 35 
honored to be a part of this.  36 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if future presentations would be a part of the 37 
Council meetings for the sake of transparency.  38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 21 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-38] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-39] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-40] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 22 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-41] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-42] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-43] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Page 23 of 23 
 

[SLIDE-44] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-45] 3 

 4 
[ADJOURNEMENT] 5 
 6 
 Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 4:23 p.m. 7 
 8 

Jacques K. Gilbert  9 
Apex, Mayor  10 

 11 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC  12 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council  13 
 14 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman 15 
 16 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2024. 17 
 18 
 19 


